
 

 

 
Date of issue: 18th March 2011 

 
  

MEETING  STANDARDS (DETERMINATION) SUB-COMMITTEE 
  
 CO-OPTED/INDEPENDENT MEMBERS 
 The Reverend Paul Lipscomb (Chair), Mr Mike Field and 

Dr Henna Khan 
  
 ELECTED MEMBERS:- 
 Councillors  Bal and MacIsaac 
  
DATE AND TIME: MONDAY, 28TH MARCH, 2011 AT 7.00 PM OR ON 

THE RISING OF THE STANDARDS (ASSESSMENT) 
SUB-COMMITTEE WHICHEVER IS THE LATER. 

  
VENUE: COMMITTEE ROOM 2, TOWN HALL, BATH ROAD, 

SLOUGH 
  
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
OFFICER: 
(for all enquiries) 

JUNE COOK 
 
01753 875019 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are requested to attend the above Meeting at the time and date indicated to deal 
with the business set out in the following agenda. 
 

 

 
 

RUTH BAGLEY 
Chief Executive 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
    

 

 

 

AGENDA 

 
PART 1 

 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

 Apologies for absence.   
 

1.   Declarations of Interest 
 

  

 (Members are reminded of their duty to declare 
personal and personal prejudicial interests in matters 
coming before this meeting as set out in the Local 
Code of Conduct) 

 
 

  

2.   Minutes of the previous Meetings of the Sub-
Committee held on 2nd  February 2011 and 7th 
March 2011 
 

1 - 8  

3.   Alleged Breach of Local code of Conduct - 
Councillor Balwinder Dhillon (SBC 2010/23) 
 

9 - 92 All 

 
   

 Press and Public  

   
You are welcome to attend this meeting which is open to the press and public, as an 
observer. You will however be asked to leave before the Committee considers any items in 
the Part II agenda. Special facilities may be made available for disabled or non-English 
speaking persons. Please contact the Democratic Services Officer shown above for 
furthers details. 
 
Minicom Number for the hard of hearing – (01753) 875030 
 

 



Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee – Meeting held on Wednesday, 2nd 
February, 2011. 

 
Present:-  Co-opted Independent Members:- 

 The Reverend Paul Lipscomb, Mr Fred Ashmore and 
Mr Mike Field 

  

 Elected Members:- 

 Councillors M S Mann 

  

Also present:- Kuldip Channa (Investigating Officer), Maria Memoli (Monitoring 
Officer) and Catherine Meek (Administrator) 

 
PART I 

 
1. Declarations of Interest  

 
None.  
 

2. Minutes of the previous Meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 31st 
March 2010  
 
The minutes of the Sub-Committee meeting held on 31st March, 2010 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

3. Alleged Breach of Local Code of Conduct - Councillor Balwinder Dhillon 
(SBC 2010/15 & 16)  
 
The Sub-Committee met to consider the Investigating Officer’s report into two 
complaints relating to the same incident that Councillor Balwinder Dhillon had 
failed to comply with the Local Code of Conduct for Members.  The 
complaints had been referred to the Council’s Monitoring Officer for 
investigation by the Standards (Assessment) Sub-Committee on 28th April 
2010. 
 
In accordance with the arrangement agreed by the Standards Committee, the 
Monitoring Officer had delegated the conduct of the investigation to Kuldip 
Channa, Assistant Solicitor (Litigation) i.e. the Investigating Officer.   
 
The general summary of the complaints against Councillor Dhillon was that 
his  conduct at a meeting of the Health and Scrutiny Panel on the 22nd March 
2010, attended by several representatives from outside bodies and guests, 
was unacceptable because he was intimidating and insulting towards the 
Chair of the Panel, Councillor A Dhaliwal.  
 
The facts alleged in the two complaints that had been lodged by Councillor A 
Dhaliwal and Councillor Small were as follows:- 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 2

Page 1



 

Standards Local (Determination) Sub-Committee - 02.02.11 

Councillor A Dhaliwal’s complaint 
 
(a) The Subject Member repeatedly asked irrelevant questions 

directly of Wexham and Heatherwood Hospital Trust 
representatives in an embarrassingly aggressive tone, despite 
being asked by the Complainant, as Chairman of the Panel, to 
address questions through the Chair, thereby ignoring his 
requests. 

 
(b) Was rude by referring to a particular Councillor as “She” rather 

than by name or “Councillor”. 
 
(c) Was intimidating and rude to the Complainant pointing at the 

Complainant and addressing those present saying “I have 
something against him regarding his brother’s car-park and 
Councillor Planning Committee grudges”. 

 
(d) The above derogatory comments were made at the said public 

meeting in the presence of outside bodies, guests and the press 
and the Complainant feels his reputation and dignity has been 
damaged and his political reputation has been affected. 

 
(e) The Subject Member repeatedly refused to leave the meeting 

when asked to do so by Chairman of the Panel, because of the 
Subject Member’s bad behaviour. 

 
Councillor Small’s complaint: 
 
(a) The Subject Member accused the board/trust of improprieties in a 

bullying and threatening manner. 
 
(b) The Subject Member became more angry and irate, shouted 

waved his arms and argued with the Chairman of the panel and 
refused to leave the meeting room when asked by the Panel 
Chairman saying “I am not going to leave and who is going to 
make me”. 

 
The Investigating Officer’s final written report outlining the result of her 
investigation and her conclusions were submitted together with Councillor 
Dhillon’s written response thereto.  In addition to the papers circulated with 
the agenda the Investigating Officer tabled two further documents: 
 

• An email from Cllr Dhillon to the Investigating Officer dated 28th 
December 2010 which included an unreserved apology for the offense 
caused by him at the Health Scrutiny Panel on 22nd March 2010.  This 
document should have been included in the papers for the Sub 
Committee. 

• An email from Councillor Small to the Investigating Officer dated 21st 
December 2010 correcting an error in Document 11 (page 58 of the 

Page 2



 

Standards Local (Determination) Sub-Committee - 02.02.11 

agenda) in that there was no allegation that Councillor Dhillon had 
been bullying or threatening towards Councillor Small.  

 
A number of minor typographical errors were also corrected. 
 
The Investigating Officer presented her report following which Councillor 
Dhillon declined the opportunity to ask questions thereon.  Councillor Dhillon 
indicated that he had nothing further to add to the papers and that the 
Complainant had personal issues with him.  The Chair advised Councillor 
Dhillon that whilst he accepted that this may have caused high feeling this 
was not relevant to the hearing. 
 
The Chair put the Investigating Officer’s conclusions to Councillor Dhillon for 
comment and Councillor Dhillon indicated that he accepted them. 
 
The Sub-Committee having heard all the evidence and being satisfied that it 
had sufficient information withdrew to deliberate. 
 
On reconvening the Chair advised that the Sub Committee had come to the 
following conclusions: 
 
The Sub Committee concluded that Councillor Balwinder Dhillon:- 

 
(a) Had breached Paragraph 3 of the Local Code of Conduct in that 

he had failed to show respect to the Chair of the Health Scrutiny 
Panel and the Chief Finance Officer of Heatherwood and 
Wexham Park Hospital at the Health Scrutiny Panel meeting on 
22 March 2010. 
 

(b) Had breached Paragraph 5 of the Local Code of Conduct in that 
he had conducted himself in a manner which could reasonably 
be regarded as bringing his office and authority into disrepute at 
the Health Scrutiny Panel meeting on 22 March 2010 

 
(c) Had not breached paragraph 3(1)(b) of the Local Code of 

Conduct Code, in that he had not bullied the Chair of the Health 
Scrutiny Panel or the Chief Finance Officer of Heatherwood and 
Wexham Park Hospital at the Health Scrutiny Panel meeting on 
22 March 2010. 

 
In respect of (a) to (c) above the Sub Committee accepted the material 
findings and conclusions of the Investigating Officer.  The Sub Committee 
found that the balance of evidence showed that Councillor Dhillon had not 
treated the Chair and Chief Finance Officer of Heatherwood and Wexham 
Park Hospital with respect at the meeting of the Health Scrutiny Panel on 
22March 2010 and the manner and tone used by Councillor Dhillon was not of 
an acceptable standard expected of a Member.  The Sub Committee found 
Councillor Dhillon’s conduct at that meeting also fell short of the standard of 
conduct expected of an elected member at a public meeting.  The Sub 

Page 3



 

Standards Local (Determination) Sub-Committee - 02.02.11 

Committee found that Councillor Dhillon had breached Paragraph 3 and 5 of 
the Code. 
 
In respect of (c) above the Sub Committee found that there was insufficient 
evidence to show that Cllr Dhillon’s conduct at the Health Scrutiny Panel 
meeting on 22 March 2010 amounted to bullying of either the Chair of the 
Panel or the Chief Finance Officer of Heatherwood and Wexham Park 
Hospital. The Sub-Committee found that Cllr Dhillon had not breached 
paragraphs 3(1)(b) of the Code of Conduct. 
 
Councillor Dhillon was asked whether he wished to make any representations 
before the sub committee considered what sanction, if any, should be 
imposed.  Councillor Dhillon indicated that he had nothing further to add. 
 
The Sub Committee then deliberated in private.  The Monitoring Officer was 
asked for advice on the sanction that was to be imposed and the extent to 
which training could be left to the discretion of the Monitoring Officer.  On 
reconvening the hearing the Chair advised that the Sub Committee had 
resolved as follows: 
 
Resolved  -   That Councillor Dhillon, having been found in breach of 

Paragraph 3 and 5 of the Code of Conduct, be suspended for a 
period of two months with immediate effect and that during this 
period he should be provided with training in accordance with 
the recommendations of the Investigating Officer, at the 
discretion of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
Councillor Dhillon was advised of his right to appeal against the 
Sub-Committee’s decision to the First-tier Tribunal.  

 
 
 
 

Chair 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 6.30 pm and closed at 7.40 pm) 
 

Page 4



Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee – Meeting held on Monday, 7th 
March, 2011. 

 
Present:-  Co-opted Independent Members:- 

 The Reverend Paul Lipscomb (Chair), Mr Fred Ashmore and 
Dr Henna Khan 

  

 Elected Members:- 

 Councillor Munkley 

  

Also present:- Councillor Balvinder Bains (Subject Member), Kuldip Channa 
(Investing Officer), Elizabeth Jenkins (Deputy Monitoring 
Officer) and June Cook (Administrator) 
 

Apology for Absence:- Councillor P K Mann 

 
PART I 

 
4. Declarations of Interest  

 
None.  
 

5. Alleged breach of Local Code of Conduct - Councillor Balvinder Bains 
(SBC 2010/17)  
 
The Sub-Committee met to determine an allegation made by Ms Fariba Ismat, 
an Officer of the Council, that Councillor Balvinder Bains had failed to comply 
with Council’s Local Code of Conduct.  The complaint had been referred for 
investigation by the Standards (Assessment) Sub-Committee on 28th April 
2010.  In accordance with the arrangement agreed by the Standards 
Committee, the Monitoring Officer had delegated the conduct of the 
investigation to Kuldip Channa, Assistant Solicitor (Litigation) i.e. the 
Investigating Officer.   
 
At the Chair’s invitation introductions were by all participants following which 
he drew attention to the procedure that would be followed during the hearing 
and all parties confirmed that they were aware of it.  The Investigating Officer, 
Councillor Bains and the Deputy Monitoring Officer agreed that there were no 
grounds for the exclusion of the press and public from the meeting. 
 
The Investigating Officer’s final written report outlining the result of her 
investigation and her conclusions were submitted together with Councillor 
Bains’s written response thereto. The general summary of the complaint and 
alleged breaches of the Code identified by the Investigating Officer were that:- 
 
(1) Contrary to Paragraph 3(1) of the Local Code of Conduct Councillor 

Bains had failed to treat the Complainant with respect by  
 

Page 5



 

Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee - 07.03.11 

(i) ignoring her professional comments/opinions (as the planning 
case officer); giving her no credit as a person with some 
authority within the Planning Department and indirectly telling 
her “to shut up and let the rest of them concentrate on the 
application in hand” and addressing her line manager above 
her head     

 
(ii) embarrassing the Complainant in front of her line manager, the 

applicant and his agent  (she had felt deeply insulted and 
offended by his attitude and the manner in which he spoke to 
her) and by creating a sexist attitude/atmosphere by ignoring 
the complainant (she was the only female present at the 
meeting)  

 
(2) Contrary to Paragraph 3(2)(b) of the Code the Subject Member was 

insistent on pushing the Complainant’s Manager to compromise over 
an issue in discussion at the said meeting. 

 
(3) Contrary to Paragraph 5 of the Code had brought his office or the 

Authority into disrepute. 
 
The Investigating Officer presented her report following which Councillor 
Bains presented his case during which they and the Sub-Committee Members 
were given the opportunity to ask questions to clarify the evidence submitted.  
 

On completion of the presentation of both cases, the Chair and Members of 
the Sub-Committee confirmed that they had sufficient information to 
determine whether or not there had been a breach of the Local Code of 
Conduct and all parties withdrew from the room to enable the Sub-Committee 
to consider its decision. 
 
On reconvening the hearing, the Chair advised that the Sub-Committee in 
determining the allegations had taken into account the following:- 
 

(a) That the evidence submitted was inconclusive that Councillor 
Bains had failed to treat the Complainant with respect or that he 
had displayed a sexist attitude towards her.  

 
(b) That there was no evidence that Councillor Bains failed to treat 

the Complainant’s Manager with respect. 
 
(c) There was no evidence to show there was any bullying by 

Councillor Bains at the Meeting or that he had brought his office 
or the Authority into disrepute. 

 
(d) That Councillor Bains, on being advised about the complaint had 

indicated that he had not appreciated her role at the meeting 
believing that she was present as the note taker and had offered 
to apologise to the Complainant for any offence his actions may 
have caused. 

Page 6



 

Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee - 07.03.11 

 
Having regard to the above the Sub Committee  
 
Resolved –  
 

(a) That Councillor Bains had not breached Paragraph 3(2)(b) of the 
Local Code of Conduct. 

 
(b) That Councillor Bains had not breached Paragraph 5 of the 

Local Code of Conduct. 
 

(c) That there was insufficient evidence to prove that Councillor 
Bains had failed to treat the Complainant with respect contrary to 
Paragraph 3(1) of the Local Code of Conduct. 

 
(d) That in the future Members and Officers should fully comply with 

the requirements of Paragraph 5.8 of Part 5.5 of the Council's 
Constitution relating to the taking of written notes of meetings of 
this kind and that there should be a greater degree of formality 
with proper introductions being made at the start of meetings. 

 
(e) That senior management and any other relevant parties facilitate 

ways to improve the relationship between the subject member 
and the complainant. 

 
 
 

Chair 
 

(Note: The Meeting opened at 7.00 pm and closed at 8.22 pm) 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

REPORT TO:      Standards (Determination)    DATE:  28th March 2011 
 Sub-Committee 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:   June Cook 
(For all Enquiries)  Member Services Manager (01753) 875019 
 
WARDS:  N/A   

 
PART I 
 

FOR DECISION 
 
ALLEGED BREACH OF LOCAL CODE OF CONDUCT – COUNCILLOR BALWINDER 
DHILLON (SBC 2010/23) 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to submit for consideration the Council’s Investigating 
Officer’s report on the results of her investigation into a complaint that Councillor 
Balwinder Dhillon has failed to comply with the Local Code of Conduct for Members 
(Appendix A (1) & (2)) and Councillor Dhillon’s response thereto.   

 
2. Recommendation/Action Required 
 
2.1 The Sub-Committee is asked to consider the Investigating Officer’s report and 

decide what further action, if any, is required. 
 

3. Community Strategy Priorities 
 
3.1 It is important that the public have confidence in all Members of the Council who are 

duty bound to abide by the provisions contained in the Local Code of Conduct for 
Members and the Council’s own Ethical Framework.  Furthermore, it is for the 
benefit of all Members that complaints made against them are fully investigated and 
dealt with in accordance with the procedure laid down by Standards for England.   
 

4. Other Implications       
 

4.1 There are no direct financial or staffing implications arising out of this report. The 
process of hearing and determining the allegation will be in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Authorities (Code of Conduct) (Local Determination) 
Regulations 2003 (as amended) and guidance issued by the Standards Board for 
England.  Any potential human rights issues which might arise are addressed and 
provided for in the hearing procedure.  

AGENDA ITEM 3

Page 9



5. Background Information 
 

5.1 On 13th July 2010 the Standards (Assessment) Sub-Committee referred to the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer for investigation a complaint that Councillor Balwinder 
Dhillon had failed to comply with the Local Code of Conduct.  In accordance with 
the arrangement agreed by the Standards Committee, the Monitoring Officer 
delegated the conduct of the investigation to Kuldip Channa, Assistant Solicitor 
(Litigation) i.e. the Investigating Officer.   

 
5.2 The complaint has been made by Mr Steve Wagner an officer of the Council.  The 

general summary of the complaint against Councillor Dhillon is that during a 
telephone call by the Subject Member to the Complainant to discuss two cases he 
was interested in Councillor Dhillon became irate, raised his voice and was 
offensive and insulting to the Complainant.  Mr Wagner will be available at the 
meeting should Members wish to clarify any matters with him. 

 
5.3 To simplify the hearing process Councillor Dhillon was asked to complete and return 

the following pre-hearing forms by 15th February 2011.    
 
  Form A – Identification of any disputes of fact 
 Form B – Other Evidence to be taken into account at the hearing 
 Form D – Arrangements for the Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee Hearing 
 Form E – Details of any witnesses to be called. 
 

On 16th February 2011 the Clerk to the Sub-Committee received by fax from Cllr 
Dhillon a signed witness statement from Mr Satpal Singh Grewal dated 15th 
February 2011. (Appendix B, Document 1).  
  

 Forms D and E completed, together with a witness statement by Councillor Dhillon, 
were faxed to the Council by NC Brothers & Co, Solicitors acting for the Subject 
Member on 24th February 2011 (Appendix B, Document 2). Subsequently, 
Councillor Dhillon on 15th March advised by telephone that Mr Derek Cryer will be 
attending the meeting to present his case.  He will also be accompanied by his 
Solicitor, Mr Nigel Brothers. 

 
 Forms A & B have not been returned. 
 
5.4 On the morning of the 28th February Councillor Dhillon faxed a letter from Mr Grewal 

dated 25th February indicating that due to ill health he would be unable to attend the 
hearing on the 28th February. (Appendix B, Document 3).  In view of this, with the 
agreement of the Chair of the Sub-Committee and the Monitoring Officer, the 
meeting was postponed to a later date to enable Mr Grewal to attend the hearing as 
a witness.  Subsequently, Councillor Dhillon has advised orally and by fax that Mr 
Grewal is too distressed to attend any hearing but that he would be prepared to 
have a witness statement taken from him by the Investigating Officer in his own 
home in the presence of an independent person or the Solicitor acting for Councillor 
Dhillon.  Cllr Dhillon has advised that Mr Grewal has indicated that the Sub-
Committee should have sufficient information or they can ask questions of him over 
the telephone or proceed without him (Appendix B, Document 4). 

 

Page 10



5.5  Following receipt of Mr Grewal’s witness statement the Investigating Officer 
undertook additional investigative steps and attached as Appendix A (2)  to her 
report i.e. Appendix A (1)  is her supplementary report setting out the results of 
those investigations.  

 
5.6 Enclosed for your attention and/or information are the following documents: 
 

Appendix Document 

Appendix A (1) 
& (2) 

Investigating Officer’s Report and Supplementary Report 
with attachments 

Appendix B Completed Pre-hearing forms and other documents 
submitted by Councillor Dhillon and his Solicitor 

Appendix C Procedure for the hearing 

Appendix D Standards Board advice on admission of press and public  

 Appendix E Categories of “exempt information” 

Appendix F Sanctions available to the Sub-Committee 

 
5.7 The procedure for the hearing will be as set out in Appendix C and any guidance 

and/or advice the Sub-Committee may require will be provided by the Monitoring 
Officer, Maria Memoli, Acting Borough Secretary and Solicitor. 

 
6.  Conclusion 
 
6.1 The Sub-Committee is asked to consider the evidence presented and come to a 

decision as to what action, if any, should be taken in respect of this matter. 
 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

1 

APPENDIX A (1) 
 
 
 

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
 
 
 
 
REPORT OF AN INVESTIGATION UNDER SECTION 66 
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 AND 
REGULATION 5 OF THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (CODE 
OF CONDUCT) (LOCAL DETERMINATION) 
REGULATIONS 2003 (AS AMENDED) BY KULDIP 
CHANNA, (KC) (LITIGATION SOLICITOR) APPOINTED 
AS INVESTIGATION OFFICER, BY MARIA MEMOLI, THE 
MONITORING OFFICER INTO AN ALLEGATION 
CONCERNING COUNCILLOR BALWINDER SINGH 
DHILLON (SBC23). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

2 

1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Steve Wagner, Grants Renewals Manager (SW) made a written complaint to the 

Monitoring Officer of Slough Borough Council (SBC). The complaint is dated 
7June 2010. (Document 1). 

 
1.2 In summary SW alleged that on 26 May 2010,  Councillor Balwinder Dhillon’s (BD) 

conduct, during a telephone conversation was unacceptable.  BD had telephoned 
the Private Sector Housing Team (PSH) at approximately 17:30/17:45 that day to 
enquire about two ongoing grant cases.  During the conversation regarding one of 
the cases, BD became,  “irate, raised his voice and was offensive and insulting” 
towards SW.    

 
1.3 On 13 July  2010, the Standards (Assessment) Sub- Committee, considered the 

complaints from SW and decided to refer the complaint for investigation.   The 
Sub-Committee also noted that SW had not particularised the breaches of the 
Local Code of Conduct (“the Code”) and as a consequence identified the following 
paragraphs which may apply to the alleged conduct:-  

 
(a) “You must treat others with respect”,  - paragraph 3(1) 
(b) “You must not bully any person”,  -  paragraph 3(2)(b) 
 

1.4 The summary of complaint is at Document 2 and the Decision Notice is at 
Documents 3. 

  
 

2. The Process 
 
2.1 As part of my investigation I conducted a face to face interview with the following:- 

 
(a) The Complainant SW on 22 March 2010 – interview statement (Document 

4).  SW also provided the following documents: 
(i) Email dated 18 May 2010 from BD to SW, referring to information 

about the case, 
(ii) Email dated 25 June from Manju Dhar, Private Sector Housing 

Manager (MD) to SW, (incorporating email response dated 24 
June 2010 to BD from Denise Alder, Strategic Director of Green 
and Built, (DA); and an email from BD to Finbar McSweeney, 
Corporate Complaints Officer (FM) dated 26 May 2010)   

(iii) SW’s note of the telephone conversation on 26 May 2010  
 

2.2 There was no face to face interview with BD as he advised me that he would 
provide me with a written response to the allegation: 

 
a) 21 October 2010 – I initially wrote to BD providing him with the complaint 

documents and the process to be followed in the investigation.  I received 
no response from BD.  (Document 5) 

 
b) 9 November 2010 – I was made aware by SW that he had received a direct 

letter of apology from BD as a consequence of which I wrote to BD to 
advise him that he should not be approaching SW directly about this 
complaint. (Document 6). I was also made aware that around about the 

Page 14



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

3 

same week  BD had also tried to contact SW by telephone, although the 
precise details of that are unknown as the call could not be taken by SW  
and BD did not leave a message.  

 
c) 15 November 2010 – I received an email letter from BD stating that he 

would like to make a written statement in respect of the complaint.  BD’s 
response was also noted in the same letter. (Document 7). The documents  
provided by BD consisted of 9 pages : 

 
i. Page 1 of 9 -Letter dated 15 November 2010. It consists of 4 

paragraphs of BD’s response to the allegation, 
ii. Page 2 of 9- Letter dated 20 May 2010 from SW to Applicant, 
iii. Page 3 of 9 – continuing paragraphs 5 to 7 of BD’s response 

to the allegation, 
iv. Page 4 of 9– BD’s email to Denise Alder referring to her 

response about BD’s complaint about SW, 
v. Page 5 of 9 – further copy of letter dated 20 May 2010 from 

SW to the Applicant, plus paragraphs 8 to 10 of BD’s 
response to the allegation, 

vi. Page 6 of 9 – paragraph 11 to 21 of BD’s response to the 
allegation, 

vii. Page 7 of 9 – mostly blank except some email address 
details, 

viii. Page 8 of 9 – BD’s complaint to FM,   
ix. Page 9 of 9 – paragraphs 22 to 24 of BD’s response to the 

allegation.  
 
2.3 I note that BD did not provide a copy of DA’s email response to his complaint 

about SW.  Considering the sequence of nine pages sent to me and page 7 of 9 
being mostly blank I wonder whether DA’s response should be noted there?  

 
2.4 19 November 2010 I received an email confirmation sent on behalf of SW which 

stated that he would like to proceed with his complaint. (Document 8).  I 
understood this to mean that SW did not accept BD’s apology (BD letter of 25 
October to SW) and he wanted me to carry on with the Standards investigation. 

 
   
3. Statutory Framework  
 
3.1 The Relevant Authorities (General Principles) Order 2001 sets out the principles 

which are to govern the conduct of Members and two appear relevant to the 
complaint in question.  These are:- 
 

“Selflessness 

 Members should serve only the public interest and should 

never improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any 

person. 

Respect for Others 
 
Members should promote equality by not discriminating 

Page 15



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

4 

unlawfully against any person, and by treating people with 
respect, regardless of their race, age, religion, gender, sexual 
orientation or disability. They should respect the impartiality 
and integrity of the authority’s statutory officers, and its other 
employees.” 

 
 
3.2 The Council adopted its current Local Code of Conduct for Members (“the Code”) 

on 21st May 2007.   
  

3.2 All Members who are elected to office must sign a “Declaration of Acceptance of 
Office” before they can officially act as a Councillor.  In that declaration they 
undertake to observe the Code as to the conduct which is expected of Members of 
the Council. 

 
3.3 BD was first elected to the Council on 10 June 2004  and signed his declaration of 

acceptance of office on 14 June 2004.  He was re-elected on 3 May 2007 and 
made his declaration on 9 May 2007.   

 
3.4 BD has attended the following training sessions on the Code:  

13th January 2005 Lobbying & Dual Hattedness  
5th  December 2005 (Ethical Framework) 
9th  May 2007 Revised Local Code of Conduct & Member/Officer Relations 

 Code 
3rd November 2008 Local Code of Conduct 
12th  May 2010 Local Code of Conduct & Member/Officer Relations Code 

 

3.5 The Code is split into three parts:-  
Part 1 is relevant and entitled, “General Provisions” and “General Obligations” of 
which paragraphs 3 is relevant for the purposes of this investigation.  Paragraphs 
3 states:  
 

paragraph 3(1) 
 “You must treat others with respect”    
 
paragraph 3(2)(b) 
“You must not, bully any person”,  
 

 
3.6 It is helpful to refer to the Code of Conduct, Guide for Members, May 2007, (“the 

Guidance”), from the Standards Board for England (“the Standards Board”) on 
treating others with respect and bullying. 

 
3.7  It is against the Guidance and these General Principles and the provisions of the 

Code that I have investigated the complaints.  
 
3.8 I have also considered SBC’s Constitution, Part 5.5 Local Code Governing 

Relations between elected Members and Council Employees.  In particular 
Paragraphs 3.2 (d), (f) (g) (h)  and 5.3 and 5.6: 
 
Paragraph 3.2 (d), (f), (g) and (h) states: 

 

Page 16



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

5 

“Officers can expect from Members. 
(d)Respect, dignity and courtesy. 
 
(f)Not to be subject to bullying or to be put under undue pressure.  Members 
should have regard to the seniority of officers in determining what are reasonable 
requests, having regard to the power relationship between Members and Officers, 
and the potential vulnerability of Officers, particularly at junior levels. 
(g)That Members will not use their position or relationship with Officers to advance 
their personal interests or those of others or to influence decisions improperly. 
(h)That Members will at all times comply with the relevant Codes of Conduct.” 
 

Paragraph 5.3 states 
“Members are elected to represent the interests of their constituents, but 
they should not seek special treatment for any individual.  When dealing 
with Officers, they must declare any special relationships they have with the 
constituents concerned.” 

 
     Paragraph 5.6 states that: 

“Members should not bring or attempt to bring undue influence to bear on 
an Officer to take any action that is: ……..capable of being interpreted as 
intimidation or bullying.” 

 
3.9 Information established during the investigation about the circumstances of 

the telephone conversation: 
a. SW states that on 26 May 2010 at about 17:30/17:45, Private Sector 

Housing (PSH) received a telephone call from BD and SW answered the 
telephone as he was the only one in the office at the time; 

b. BD states that on 26 May 2010 at about 17:40, he received a telephone call 
from SW; 

c. SW was concerned about his telephone conversation with BD and wrote a 
note about it and sent it to MD, his Manager. The note is dated 26 May 
2010. 

d. BD wrote a letter of complaint about the case and the telephone 
conversation with SW to FM. The complaint letter is dated 26 May 2010. 
(DA, responded to this complaint on 24 June 2010). 

e. BD’s query concerned an application for a Disability Facilities Grant (DFG) 
from the Home Improvement Agency  (HIA) based in the PSH Section at 
Slough Borough Council (SBC). The grant is for adaption of a residential 
property for use by a disabled person. 

f. The DFG process commences with the submission of an application by a 
disabled Applicant. Various assessments are made including occupational 
health and financial. 

g. The Applicant is placed on a waiting list which usually means several years 
on that list.  Applicants are made aware that there may be a long waiting 
period before a grant is available. 

h. The HIA will undertake adaptation works through approved contractors if 
Applicants request it.  The HIA charges a fifteen percent  fee for this 
service.  Applicants can also arrange a private contractor if formalities are 
completed with the HIA for example the provision of three quotations from 
reputable contractors. The grant funds are paid directly to the Applicants if 
a private contractor is used. If direct payment is made to the Applicant the 
HIA is obliged to ensure that there is proper use of the funds since public 
money is being provided for the works. It is clear that it is inevitable the 

Page 17



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

6 

process will take time.  SW states that on average most grant 
authorisations where the Applicant wants to use a private contractor are 
completed within six months. The reason for this appears to be because of 
the need for  technical specification of the works and various planning and 
building regulation requirements. 

i. The Applicant in this case had been on the waiting list since November 
2007.  A change of circumstances was notified to the HIA in December 
2009. 

j. This Applicant’s initial financial assessment was on 25 January 2010.  From 
the papers I note that BD made enquiries about it on 18 and 26 May 2010.  
This case was still within the six month time limit of the HIA process when 
BD made enquiries about it. 

k. This Applicant wanted the works done by their own private contractor.  HIA 
would provide the technical specifications. 

l. HIA sent a letter to the Applicant on 20 May 2010. HIA expected a 
response from the Applicant that the conditions set out in the letter were 
agreed. The letter does not contain an explicit sentence requiring the 
Applicant’s agreement. 

m. During the telephone conversation, SW attempted to explain the HIA’s 
process and that the Applicant had to accept the conditions set out by the 
HIA and the Council’s obligations about ensuring that the relevant building 
control, planning and other specifications are followed by the Applicant. 

n. BD states that  he was trying to say that he had permission from the family 
to say that they agreed to the terms. However in BD’s view the letter did not 
say that a written response was expected from them confirming their 
acceptance of the terms.  

o. BD believes that the DFG had been delayed due to HIA Officers being, 
“often un-contactable, not available or on leave” (Response p1) .  BD felt 
disappointed by what he believed was the lack of progress about this grant 
application. He believed the Applicant had been on the waiting list for 
four/five years which was a long time.  

p. SW states that BD told him what his job should be and what he should do 
to “move the project along” (SW’s telephone record 26 May 2010).   

q. BD believes he was asking SW to ensure the HIA sent the technical 
specifications as soon as possible since the family had waited long enough 
and they needed those specifications to obtain the estimates. 

r. BD does not accept he was “speaking over” SW.(Response p5) 
s. SW states that BD kept “cutting him off mid sentence”. (SW’s telephone 

record 26 May 2010). 
t. During the conversation SW comments that BD had said during the 

conversation that he did not understand “his grammar” although BD did not 
elaborate on this when SW asked what he meant by this comment.  SW 
himself states that he had difficulty in understanding BD because of his 
accent.  

u. SW states that BD raised his voice and then proceeded to make the 
comment that “the only nice person in the team”, was MD, at which point 
SW was offended as he felt it was an unacceptable comment about him 
and the HIA team members.  He stated he would put the telephone receiver 
down and then he did so. (SW interview p3 par10).  

v. There was confusion in the case as it was unclear if the Applicant wanted to 
deal directly with the HIA or whether he was represented by BD. Both 
seemed to be contacting the HIA about the same issue.  

Page 18



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

7 

w. From general SBC knowledge, I understand the HIA is a recognised 
Agency and an award winning Section of PSH at SBC.  

 
4(A).  Material Findings – You must treat others with respect  
 
4.1.  

(a) SW states that he attempted to explain the grants process to BD 
(page 2, par.7), however BD  “kept on cutting me off mid 
sentence…”; further that he “raised his voice”; 

(b) SW states at page 3, paragraph 10 that he believes that “the manner 
in which he approached the case ……was very disrespectful…” BD’s 
tone of voice was aggressive and that, “indeed this aggressive tone 
had commenced almost immediately during my conversation with 
him”; further that he detected “anger” in his voice,, 

(c) SW felt  “deeply offended” by BD’s reference to another Manager as 
being the only “nice person” in his team.  He felt it was a particular 
“insult” to his team.    

     
4.2. The conclusions which SW drew from BD’s comments were that: 

(a) BD did not understand the HIA’s process; 
(b) BD believed it was a “simple case” when it was not and needed to follow a 

set process; 
(c) BD wanted the HIA to “escalate the process in respect of this case, (p1, 

par.2); he felt this was an inappropriate intervention on a particular case 
by an elected Member; 

(d) BD thought some staff were “nice” and others were not and he felt this 
view held by an elected Member was insulting to him and the HIA team as 
whole.      

(e) SW felt that a process could not be “short circuited on the say so of an 
elected member”, (p2, par.9); 

(f) SW further believes that the approach of BD was such that it was of a 
level where it was “bullying” as a junior member of staff may not have 
been able to deal with this attitude, (p3, par9).  

 
4.3.   BD states that  he was attempting to: 

(a) Request an update for the progress of the case; 
(b) Say that the letter of 20 May 2010 to the Applicant did not state it required 

a response from Applicant; 
(c) Say that the process had already taken too long, as the Applicant had 

waited four to five years; 
(d) That he had authority from “the family” to confirm acceptance of the 

conditions and SW should proceed to supply the specifications since 
without them the family could not obtain the relevant quotes;  

(e) That his dealings with MD have always gone well.  
 
4.4.  The conclusions which BD drew were that: 

(a) The family had already had to wait too long for the DFG, 
(b) The work was straightforward with some draining, plumbing and a front 

window, 
(c) HIA Officers had further delayed the process by not being available or 

contactable or on annual leave; the “Officers were not as helpful as they 
could have been”; (Response p9). 

Page 19



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

8 

(d) HIA process is “inadequate”, there is too much paperwork and dealt with 
in a “drip feeding” manner and that the family feel, “fobbed off by the 
Council”;  (Response p9). 

(e) Letter of 20 May 2010 was not clear that the family needed to advise the 
HIA they accepted the conditions, 

 
4(B). Reasoning –  “You must treat others with respect”  
 
4(B).1. I find that  on balance of the evidence BD did not treat SW with respect for the 

reasons set out below: 
 

(a) SW is a senior member of staff and an officer with some ten years 
experience at SBC and used to dealing with elected Members including 
Members of Parliament, and therefore SW is clearly able to assess 
situations involving elected Members and his evidence is that he found 
the manner and approach of BD aggressive and unacceptable;  

(b) SW’s evidence further points to the lack of understanding by BD about 
the grants process and this is confirmed in BD’s own emails about the 
case. BD did not understand the process and did not attempt to do so.  
The reference to the family and their authorisation is of concern since 
the DFG is available to a disabled Applicant not the family.  BD makes 
no reference to the Applicant at all.  

(c) The email evidence from DA about the work of the HIA would show that 
it is difficult to accept that it is an inadequate system;     

(d) The evidence points to BD having “overstepped the mark”, whilst it is 
accepted he might want to make enquiries on behalf of a constituent, 
however it seemed more of a demand about what SW should do to 
progress the case; this point is particularly more acute because it is 
clear from DA’s email of 26 May, that MD had already explained the full 
facts and process to BD that same day.     

(e) BD’s comments are contradictory. If he wishes to maintain his pojnt  
that the letter of 20 May does not indicate that a response is required 
from the family, then it seems a little odd that his next point in the 
telephone conversation with SW, is that he is authorised to indicate to 
the HIA that the family will accept the conditions as set out in the HIA 
letter.  He could not have had that authority if they did not understand 
the letter required a response.   

(f) By his own admission BD states that he felt the family had waited long 
enough and that HIA progress was slow and all he wished to do was to 
get the HIA Officers to bring it to a conclusion. He was representing the 
family who wanted “to speed up the process”. (email dated 18 May from 
BD to SW).  

 
 
5(A). Material Findings –  “you must not bully any person” 
 
5.1 The issue here being: Could BD’s conduct amount to bullying of SW? 

 
5.2 SW is a Senior Officer and used to dealing with Members’ questions about 

individual cases; 
 

Page 20



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

9 

5.3 SW himself was of the view that BD’s attitude would have made a junior member 
of staff feel “bullied” (p3, par.9);     
 

5.4 SW states BD’s tone was aggressive from the onset; 
 
5.5 SW believes that BD wanted SBC to escalate the process on this case,   
 
5.6 BD states that he found SW’s attitude, “very offensive, distressing and 

intimidating” (Response letter p8  of 9);  BD himself comments on SW’s conduct 
as being offensive and is concerned about it when SW deals with “vulnerable 
members” of the community.  

 
5.7 There may have been some communication difficulties during this telephone 

conversation so this may have created more misunderstanding/misinterpretation 
than usual between BD and SW.  

 
 
5(B). Reasoning - “you must not bully any person” 
 
 
5.8 Bullying can be a one off incident. Bullying can be offensive, intimidating, 

malicious, insulting or humiliating behaviour directed towards a weaker person. It 
can include undermining comments.  

 
5.9 Undue pressure being  the use of power over another to induce a compromise, to 

use more than what is reasonable, suitable or necessary to attempt to persuade 
someone by trying to use influence to further that cause.  

 
5.10 I find that  on the balance of the evidence BD did not bully SW but  that he did 

place undue pressure upon him. The reasons are set out below: 
 
5.11 It was a formal request for information.   BD requested that information in his 

capacity as an elected Member.   
 
5.12 SW states he was able to deal with the situation, however he does state that a 

junior member of staff may not have been able to do so.  However, in view of the 
fact that SW felt offended by BD’s comment and he put the receiver down I am 
inclined to conclude that the tone of the conversation had more of an impact on 
him then he may wish to admit. 

 
5.13 It is possible to see how a comment by a elected Member about one Manager 

being “nice” could be seen as undermining to SW and others in the same  team. 
The tone of BD’s email to FM on 26 May has a negative undercurrent in that BD 
has “never had any difficulty” with MD, this can been interpreted as saying that 
there are difficulties with others. BD’s use of language and expression may not be 
helpful in these circumstances.   

 
5.14 BD’s conduct is borderline between undue pressure and bullying towards SW.  

Whilst SW was able to deal with the situation at the time, it left him concerned 
enough to put in a formal complaint as he felt obliged to consider the impact of 
such behaviour by an elected Member on another less experienced member of 
staff.  

Page 21



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

10 

 
5.15 DA’s email of 24 June 2010 which deals with the investigation of BD’s complaint 

about SW shows that BD had contacted the HIA about the same issues on 
“numerous times and have spoken to a number of staff” (par4). Further at 
paragraph 3 that all correspondence had been actioned within SBC’s guidelines. 
At paragraph 2, DA states that earlier on 26 May MD had advised BD about the 
DFG process as well as the fact that the specifications would take a few weeks 
since the Surveyor was on annual leave.  And that the Council has to prioritise 
resources and it does sometimes mean that vulnerable people may be waiting a 
long time for adaptation changes to their home.  However late in the evening on 
26 May BD continues to raise the issues again with the HIA office trying to push 
this case through again.  It does not seem reasonable that having had the 
explanations from MD during the day BD then raises the issues again in the 
evening. From that email it is evident that BD had raised it with different Officers 
over a short period of time. 

 
5.16 Whilst accepting that BD was anxious to ensure the progress of the Applicant’s 

DFG, I conclude that BD did badger the HIA Officers about this case and that on 
that particular evening he tried to put undue pressure on SW to take a particular 
course of action.  The evidence shows that his conduct did “overstep the mark” 
particularly with regard to the impression that SW formulated that he should 
escalate the HIA procedure on the case.   

 
6.   Conclusions and Recommendations  
 
6.1 Overall I have formulated the impression that BD has tried to use his elected position 

to confer an advantage to a particular constituent.  I do not get the impression that 
this was a simple Member enquiry about how a case was progressing but more a 
push to get the HIA to bring it to conclusion quickly in favour of the family.  The case 
was clearly still within the normal time limit of six months.  It would have come to a 
natural conclusion soon anyway.   

 
6.2 By his own admission BD states that he felt the progress was slow and all he wished 

to do was to get the HIA Officers to bring it to a conclusion. BD did not understand the 
process for example he felt the Applicant had waited for some four or five years.  This 
waiting time seems to be part of the normal process and Applicants are made aware 
of it.  The evidence points to BD requiring action to be taken on it there and then.  BD 
appears to be trying to force or drive SW to a conclusion.  

 
6.3 I cannot draw any conclusion about whether BD telephoned SW or SW telephoned 

BD, as there is no independent evidence on this point.  However, for the purpose of 
this investigation I have considered that BD may have made a mistake when he wrote 
his email to FM.  SW is clear that he answered the telephone call that evening.  There 
does not appear to be any evidence that SW had a reason or a message to telephone 
BD about this case.  Indeed DA’s email supports the view that SW would have no 
reason to telephone BD since his Manager MD had already spoken to BD during the 
day on 26 May about the case. 

 
6.4 SW alleges BD raised his voice and he was asked to lower his tone. BD alleges that 

SW was “shouting and screaming”  towards the end of the conversation.  I am unable 
to draw any conclusions about who raised his voice or who was shouting since it was 
a conversation between two people on a telephone and there could be no witnesses 

Page 22



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

11 

who could clarify the point.  Both BD and SW felt compelled to complain about the 
telephone conversation. Overall I think the evidence points to the fact that it was 
probably a heated discussion between BD and SW. 

 
6.5 On balance the evidence is that BD did “over step the mark”, was trying to drive the 

case to a conclusion without any regard for the processes involved and was therefore 
putting undue pressure on SW. 

 
6.6      I also make the following observation: 

 BD has a valid point that the letter of 20 May 2010 does not make it clear that a 
response is required from the Applicant. The HIA may wish to consider ensuring 
that the letters requiring a response from Applicants clearly state that a response 
is required and provide a time limit within which it should be submitted.  In my view 
best practice may be to send a duplicate letter which is required to be signed and 
returned to the HIA within a set time frame.  

 
7 I would recommend that specific formal training for BD in the following is 

considered: 
 

a. What constitutes making relevant Member enquiries on behalf of  
constituents and how to progress them legitimately with Officers 

 
b. Interpersonal skills about interaction or expressing personal views to 

Officers, 
    

8. I would like to record my thanks to all parties for the co-operation I have received   
 in investigating these complaints. 
 
9.  In summary I conclude that:-  
 

a. BD has breached paragraph 3 of the Code in that he has failed to show 
respect for SW during the telephone conversation on 26 May 2010. 
 

b. BD has not breached paragraph 3(1)(b) of the Code, however he did put 
undue pressure on SW during the telephone conversation on 26 May 2010.   
 

 
Date: 12th January 2011                                                                                    
Kuldip K Channa,  
(Litigation Solicitor) 
Standards Investigation Officer, 
For and on behalf of the Monitoring Officer 

Page 23



 

KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 115273 Page  
 

12 

LIST OF DOCUMENTS ANNEXED TO REPORT 
 
1) Steve Wagner’s Complaint dated 7 June 2010  

2) Summary of Complaint dated 26 May 2010 

3) Decision Notice SBC23  dated 26 May 2010  

4) Interveiw Statement of Steve Wagner plus: 

 a) Email dated 18 May 2010 from BD to SW, referring to information about the 
grant, 
b) Email dated 25 June from Manju Dhar, Private Sector Housing Manager 
(MD) to SW, (incorporating email response dated 24 June 2010 to BD from 
Denise Alder, Strategic Director of Green and Built, (DA) to BD; and an email 
from BD to Finbar McSweeney, Corporate Complaints Officer (FM) dated 26 
May 2010)   
c) SW’s note of the telephone conversation on 26 May 2010  

 
5) Letter  dated 25 October 2010 from Councillor Dhillon to Steve Wagner  

6) Letter dated 10 November 2010 from Investigator to Councillor Dhillon 

7) Councillor Dhillon’s written response to the allegation dated 15 November 2010 plus 

i.   Page 1 of 9 -Letter dated 15 November 2010. It 
consists of 4 paragraphs of BD’s response to allegation, 

ii. Page 2 of 9- Letter dated 20 May 2010 from SW to Applicant, 
iii. Page 3 of 9 – continuing paragraphs 5 to 7 of BD’s response to the 

allegation, 
iv. Page 4 of 9– BD’s email to Denise Alder referring to her response 

about BD’s complaint about SW, 
v. Page 5 of 9 – further copy of letter dated 20 May 2010 from SW to 

the Applicant, plus paragraphs 8 to 10 of BD’s response to the 
allegation, 

vi. Page 6 of 9 – paragraph 11 to 21 of BD’s response to allegation, 
vii. Page 7 of 9 – mostly blank except some email address details, 
viii. Page 8 of 9 – BD’s complaint to the Corporate Complaints Officer,   
ix. Page 9 of 9 – paragraphs 22 to 24 of BD’s response to the 

allegation.  
 

8) Email dated 19 November 2010, sent on behalf of Steve Wagner to the Investigator 

 

 
 

Page 24



KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 119763 Page 1 
 

APPENDIX A (2) 
 
 

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT TO THE  
 
REPORT DATED 12 JANUARY 2011 
OF AN INVESTIGATION UNDER SECTION 66 OF THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 AND REGULATION 14 
OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE (ENGLAND) 
REGULATIONS 2008 (AS AMENDED), BY KULDIP 
CHANNA, (KC) (LITIGATION SOLICITOR) APPOINTED 
AS INVESTIGATION OFFICER, BY MARIA MEMOLI, THE 
MONITORING OFFICER INTO AN ALLEGATION 
CONCERNING COUNCILLOR BALWINDER SINGH 
DHILLON (SBC23). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 119763 Page 2 
 

1. FURTHER INVESTIGATIVE STEPS TAKEN SINCE ISSUE OF FINAL REPORT 
ON 12 JANUARY 2011 

 
1.1 On 2 February 2011, I received a telephone call from BD.  A file note of that 

telephone conversation is produced as Document 9.  The file note is self 
explanatory. 

 
1.2 On 21 February 2011, I received an email from June Cook, Member Services 

Manager advising me that BD had submitted an additional witness statement from  
Satpal Grewal (SG), the applicant for the disabled facilities grant. At the time I 
received this email I was on annual leave.  When I returned to the Office on 28 
February, I reconsidered my Final Report and papers for this investigation.  I noted 
that I had not previously received this information from BD when he submitted his 
original response on 15 November 2010 to me about this matter.  Nor indeed was 
this information provided when BD made a complaint to the Corporate Complaints 
Officer on 26 May 2010 or Denise Alder, who investigated and responded to BD’s 
complaint on 24 June 2010. 

 
1.3 SG is an interested party in this matter since he is the applicant wishing to obtain a 

facilities grant.  However in view of the new evidence provided by BD, as the 
Investigator I felt obligated to make further enquiries of SW.    

 
1.4 SW repeated his evidence as contained in his statement of 3 November 2010.  He 

further advised me that I should perhaps also check the telephone records since 
there now seemed to be an issue about whether SW telephone BD or BD 
telephoned SW.  Although I did not necessarily accept this was the crux of the 
issues in this case, I nevertheless made enquiries of the relevant SBC Officers 
about the telephone records.  A copy of my email dated 8 March 2011 requesting 
the relevant telephone records together with the results of the search are at 
Document 10.   

 
1.5 On receipt of the telephone records I further interviewed SW on 10 March.  A copy 

of my file note of that interview is at Document 11.  SW was shocked by the fact 
that the telephone records showed that he had telephoned BD.  He said, “I would 
have put my mortgage on it that he phoned me".  SW accepted with 
embarrassment that he had made a mistake about whether he or BD had 
telephoned that evening and went on to confirm that whilst he may be mistaken 
about that detail he was certain that the other information in his statement of 3 
November was correct.  

 
1.6 On 10 March following my interview with SW, I contacted the Private Sector 

Housing Administrator, Martin Brown (MB) and asked him to make a search of 
electronic and manual records as to whether  SW had been provided with any 
telephone messages to call BD on 26 May 2010.  He was unable to find any 
records which would assist the investigation.  A copy of my email and his 
response is at Document 12.   

 
1.7 I have considered SG’s statement and note that he states that BD did not insist 

that SW process the grant immediately.  Further that BD did not “raise his voice 
nor shout at Mr Steve Wagner” and that SW put the telephone down, “which I find 
was very rude….I personally felt Mr Wagner’s behaviour was rude, offensive and 
intimidating towards” BD.  Further it is suggested that SW was being obstructive 
and that SW should not be permitted to repeat such behaviour.  SG then lists his 
concerns about the process of the grant application.  In SG’s evidence I detect a 

Page 26



KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 119763 Page 3 
 

tone of pressure on the SBC Officer to deal with this particular application and a 
clear lack of understanding of the disabled facilities grant system since the Officer 
appears to be wholly blamed for lack of progress in the case rather than a note of 
the fact that the wait since 2006 relates to the process and not to the Officer’s lack 
of activity on the case.  The progress of the case for the grant appears to be within 
the normal permitted six month time limit from when an applicant is at the top of 
the list and the formal checking process prior to the payment of the funds to the 
applicant.  

 
2. In summary I conclude this Supplementary Report by observing that:-  
 

a. The telephone records point about who rang who is not an issue since it is 
accepted that there was a telephone conversation on 26 May between BD 
and SW; in my view the important issue is the content of that telephone 
conversation and how each person treated the other; 

 
b.  BD has been less than co-operative with the investigation and has a poor 

view of SBC Officers, and in particular I would refer to BD’s comments to 
me regarding Officers as referred to in Document 9; 

 
c. SG’s evidence ought to have been provided at an early stage and the 

Investigator ought to have been permitted to interview relevant witnesses; 
 

d. SG’s evidence has been produced following the receipt of the final report 
about this complaint; 

 
e. SG’s evidence has not been provided in any earlier complaint about SW by 

BD; 
 

f. it is clear in the light of the new information from BD and the telephone 
records that the Standards Committee need to hear oral evidence from both 
parties in order to further assess this matter for themselves; 

 
g. I believe that there has been a lack of desire to understand the disabled 

facilities grant process by both SG and BD and that instead a choice has 
been made to simply push SBC and in particular SW to get on with it 
quickly regardless of what the formal process may or may not be for SBC. 

 
AND for the reasons outlined above I would confirm the conclusions of my previous 

report dated 12 January that:  
    

h. BD has breached paragraph 3 of the Code in that he has failed to show 
respect for SW during the telephone conversation on 26 May 2010. 
 

i. BD has not breached paragraph 3(1)(b) of the Code, however he did put 
undue pressure on SW during the telephone conversation on 26 May 2010.   
 

Date: 16th March 2011                                                                                    
Kuldip K Channa, (Litigation Solicitor) 
Standards Investigation Officer, 
For and on behalf of the Monitoring Officer 

Page 27



KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 119763 Page 4 
 

ADDITIONAL LIST OF DOCUMENTS ANNEXED TO REPORT 
 
For documents 1 to 8 please see final report 
 

9) File note of telephone conversation with BD on 2 February 2011 

10) Email dated 8 March 2011 requesting the relevant telephone records and email 

dated 9th March responding to that request with copy of the telephone record. 

11) File note of interview with SW dated 10 March 2011 

12) Email to Martin Brown from  Investigator and his response dated 10 March 

2011 

 

Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 116734 Page 1 
 

 
DOCUMENT 9 

Slough Borough Council 
Iken Quicknote 

 
Date:  02 February 2011 
 

Client: SBC Slough Borough Council  

 

Matter: 013250-COR-290 - Standards Investigation - SBC23 Councillor Dhillon 
 

Name: Kuldip K Channa  (T: 01753 875189  E:  kuldip.channa@slough.gov.uk ) 
 

 

 Tele call to Cllor Dhillon returned.   

he asked if he had replied to my report; saying I would have to review the file but that the 

report had been finalised now; 

he said he had sent an email to me; 

saying I had not got the email yet; 

he said officers were running the council and all the elected members might as well be 

sacked; 

he said he did not ring Steve Wagner; he said he had telephone bills to show he did not 

ring him; he was not happy; it was not the way to run the council - if officers just say and 

do what they like; 

saying he could have raised issues with me at an interview but he did not want one; 

he talked about the disability of the applicant, the charges by the home improvement 

agency and the minimal grant and the waiting list etc; 

saying that the report was finalised; saying I had not got his email; 

he then apologised and said he had sent it to June Cook; saying this was fine because 

she will be able to let the Committee have his papers; 

he said he accepted the report; he is willing to go for training etc but the tone of his voice 

was dismissive and annoyed; 

 

he then referred to his other complaint and about Cllor Dhaliwal and personal issues; 

saying that these were embarrassing personal issues but not relevant for the 

investigation; my job is to investigate the complaint; other information is background; 

he said the report was biased; it was a good job; he said they were all elected but still 

they could do what they liked; 

saying that he was elected too and he had the same rights and obligations; 

he made several other comments about the report, committee, Cllor Dhaliwal etc but I did 

not really understand the thrust of his point; 

asking again that he had sent the details of his comments to June Cook and he said he 

had sent an email; 

saying that was important as she will make sure committee are aware of his comments. 

he said my report was good, I was doing a good job running the council;  he will go for 

training and whatever else he needed to do; he said it was not the right way to run the 

council but that is the way it is being run by officers at the council. The call ended by both 

parties. 

KKC.            
 
 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59



Page 60



D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

 1
0

D
a
te

T
im

e
O

ri
g

in
a
ti

n
g

 N
u

m
b

e
r

N
u

m
b

e
r 

C
a
ll
e
d

C
a
ll
 T

y
p

e
D

e
s
ti

n
a
ti

o
n

/O
ri

g
in

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:0

0
:2

7
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
7
3
4
0
'

'0
7
5
3
3
3
7
5
1
9
1
'

M
o
b
ile

3
 M

o
b
ile

0
0
:0

0
:0

1

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:0

0
:5

2
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
7
3
4
0
'

'0
1
7
5
3
5
5
0
4
5
4
'

L
o
c
a
l

S
L
O

U
G

H
0
0
:0

2
:4

2

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:0

7
:0

5
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
7
3
9
7
'

'0
7
5
2
9
9
8
5
6
5
8
'

M
o
b
ile

O
ra

n
g
e

0
0
:0

2
:4

1

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:1

1
:1

2
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
7
9
1
2
'

'0
7
7
9
9
3
4
3
7
1
4
'

M
o
b
ile

V
o
d
a
fo

n
e

0
0
:0

6
:2

8

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:1

4
:3

7
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
1
2
7
'

'0
1
7
5
3
5
3
0
9
9
3
'

L
o
c
a
l

S
L
O

U
G

H
0
0
:0

0
:3

7

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:1

7
:4

7
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
8
2
0
'

'0
1
7
5
3
8
4
0
2
9
1
'

L
o
c
a
l

S
L
O

U
G

H
0
0
:0

0
:0

3

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:1

9
:2

2
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
7
9
1
1
'

'0
7
7
6
9
7
4
1
1
7
2
'

M
o
b
ile

V
o
d
a
fo

n
e

0
0
:0

7
:0

0

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:1

9
:5

1
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
5
6
6
'

'0
1
7
5
3
5
9
5
8
3
8
'

L
o
c
a
l

S
L
O

U
G

H
0
0
:0

0
:5

4

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:2

5
:2

9
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
4
0
8
0
'

'0
1
3
7
2
7
5
6
1
6
1
'

L
o
c
a
l

E
S

H
E

R
0
0
:0

2
:2

8

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:2

5
:4

0
'0

1
7
5
3
6
9
0
7
6
6
'

'0
7
5
4
0
9
0
0
6
7
8
'

M
o
b
ile

2
0
0
:0

1
:1

5

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:2

6
:5

3
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
7
9
1
2
'

'0
7
7
9
9
3
4
3
7
1
4
'

M
o
b
ile

V
o
d
a
fo

n
e

0
0
:0

1
:2

8

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:3

1
:4

5
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
9
1
2
'

'0
8
4
4
8
4
8
8
8
3
0
'

O
th

e
r

N
o
n
 I
n
t 
1

0
0
:0

7
:1

7

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:3

1
:5

8
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
8
3
2
'

'0
1
6
2
8
4
1
2
3
8
8
'

L
o
c
a
l

M
A

ID
E

N
H

E
A

D
0
0
:0

0
:4

3

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:3

4
:2

5
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
8
3
2
'

'0
1
7
5
3
5
7
7
6
0
8
'

L
o
c
a
l

S
L
O

U
G

H
0
0
:0

0
:1

8

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:3

5
:2

2
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
4
0
8
0
'

'0
1
3
7
2
7
5
6
1
6
1
'

L
o
c
a
l

E
S

H
E

R
0
0
:1

0
:2

6

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:3

6
:4

5
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
7
9
1
1
'

'0
7
7
6
9
7
4
1
1
7
2
'

M
o
b
ile

V
o
d
a
fo

n
e

0
0
:0

2
:5

9

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:3

8
:1

8
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
4
0
9
4
'

'0
8
4
4
8
0
0
5
8
0
0
'

O
th

e
r

N
o

n
 I
n

t 
1

0
0
:0

4
:0

5

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:3

9
:1

2
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
2
1
2
'

'0
7
8
7
7
6
1
2
6
6
2
'

M
o
b
ile

3
 M

o
b
ile

0
0
:0

2
:0

5

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:3

9
:3

9
'0

1
7
5
3
7
8
7
8
9
0
'

'0
1
7
5
3
8
2
5
4
2
8
'

L
o
c
a
l

S
L
O

U
G

H
0
0
:0

4
:5

9

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:4

4
:5

9
'0

1
7
5
3
7
8
7
8
9
0
'

'0
7
9
5
8
4
2
0
6
7
6
'

M
o
b
ile

T
 M

o
b
ile

0
0
:0

2
:1

6

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:4

8
:2

5
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
6
3
1
'

'0
7
7
5
4
8
5
1
8
9
8
'

M
o
b
ile

2
0
0
:0

0
:2

7

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
6
:5

0
:1

1
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
7
3
3
5
'

'0
1
7
5
3
5
5
3
1
9
9
'

L
o
c
a
l

S
L
O

U
G

H
0
0
:0

0
:2

6

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:0

3
:1

9
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
2
1
8
'

'0
7
9
0
9
9
7
6
6
3
5
'

M
o
b
ile

V
o
d
a
fo

n
e

0
0
:2

0
:4

3

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:0

5
:4

8
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
7
3
9
7
'

'0
1
6
2
8
6
8
3
5
6
1
'

L
o
c
a
l

M
A

ID
E

N
H

E
A

D
0
0
:0

0
:1

5

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:0

6
:4

2
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
8
3
2
'

'0
8
4
5
8
5
0
5
5
0
5
'

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
N

o
n
-G

e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

L
o
c
a
l 
N

G
E

O
0
0
:0

8
:0

6

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:0

6
:4

4
'0

1
7
5
3
7
8
7
8
9
0
'

'0
8
4
4
4
7
7
0
0
7
8
'

O
th

e
r

N
o
n
 I
n
t 
1

0
0
:0

1
:2

9

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:0

8
:2

2
'0

1
7
5
3
7
8
7
8
9
0
'

'0
8
7
1
2
2
1
1
6
9
6
'

O
th

e
r

M
u
lt
im

e
d
 2

0
0
:0

0
:5

3

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:0

9
:4

1
'0

1
7
5
3
7
8
7
8
9
0
'

'0
8
7
1
2
2
1
1
6
9
6
'

O
th

e
r

M
u
lt
im

e
d
 2

0
0
:0

1
:1

4

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:1

3
:1

9
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
8
6
6
'

'0
7
8
1
4
2
3
5
6
6
2
'

M
o
b
ile

O
ra

n
g
e

0
0
:1

1
:4

4

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:1

3
:4

0
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
4
0
8
0
'

'0
7
8
3
4
5
0
7
6
5
6
'

M
o
b
ile

2
0
0
:0

4
:0

5

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:2

3
:2

5
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
8
4
2
'

'0
1
7
5
3
5
2
3
2
7
9
'

L
o
c
a
l

S
L
O

U
G

H
0
0
:0

3
:4

2

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:3

0
:4

0
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
8
6
0
'

'0
1
9
2
4
3
7
8
4
6
3
'

L
o
c
a
l

W
A

K
E

F
IE

L
D

0
0
:2

2
:4

2

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:3

8
:0

3
'0

1
7
5
3
4
7
7
9
0
7
'

'0
1
7
5
3
7
6
0
1
3
5
'

L
o
c
a
l

S
L
O

U
G

H
0
0
:0

0
:2

8

2
6
/0

5
/1

0
1
7
:4

0
:3

1
'0

1
7
5
3
8
7
5
2
6
2
'

'0
7
8
3
6
5
3
5
2
1
9
'

M
o

b
il
e

V
o

d
a
fo

n
e

0
0
:1

0
:3

7

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 119416 Page 1 
 

DOCUMENT 11 
Slough Borough Council 

Iken Quicknote 

 
Date:  10 March 2011 
 

Client: SBC Slough Borough Council  

 

Matter: 013250-COR-290 - Standards Investigation - SBC23 Councillor Dhillon 
 

Name: Kuldip K Channa  (T: 01753 875189  E:  kuldip.channa@slough.gov.uk ) 
 

 

Meeting with Steve Wagner; 

I asked him to recall the details of 26 May 2010 again; he described the same situation 

again that he was the last person in the office that day and he took a telephone call from 

cllor Dhillon; 

asking him again to cast his mind right back carefully and he said what he had said was 

what he remembered about who telephoned who that evening. 

 

Advising him that  following his prompt to me to check the telephone records about a 

week or so ago I did have those telephone records checked.   

 

I then showed him a copy of the telephone records from Tony Gorski for the 26 May 2010 

between 1600 -1900 hours;  I directed him to the calls made from his telephone extension 

and advised him that the call at 17:40:31 was to Cllor Dhillon's mobile telephone. 

 

He looked very shocked and held his hands in his head. He said he was "gobsmacked"; 

and shook his head and then went onto say "I would have put my mortgage on it that he 

phoned me". He looked at the records again and said, "but obviously I am wrong; I have 

to accept I am wrong and I must have called him but I cannot remember why I would have 

done so; I had no reason to do so; I can only speculate now that I must have recieved a 

message to call him but that is me speculating now, as I cannot honestly remember 

calling him.  I remember how difficult he was."   

 

I asked him to tell me how messages are provided to team members.  He said it was a 

combination of verbal information, messages on a piece of paper and an electronic 

message template.  

 

Steve Wagner then said that he tends to keep most of his messages so he went to see if 

there was a note of anything from Cllor Dhillon for 26 May 2010. 

 

He came back about five minutes later and said there was nothing he could find in his 

notes to ring Cllor Dhillon.  He further said that he did used to record things in his diaries 

and he used to keep all his diaries but when the team  moved to Airways House,  those 

diaries were thrown away. 

 

He studied the telephone records  again and said he was "deeply embarrassed" but he 

was not concerned about holding his hands up and saying he was wrong in remembering 

who called who that evening.  

 

We briefly discussed process options and he will speak to his manager and provide me 

with any further details by Monday 14 March.  He is conscious that he will be leaving SBC 

Page 63



KKC / 013250-COR-290 / 119416 Page 2 
 

on 21 March.  He has no problem about coming back for the hearing on 28 March.  He has 

indicated that he would like to press ahead with his complaint but that in the light of the 

new information and as matter of courtesy he may just need to discuss the situation with 

his manager as he does not want there to be any impact on his team. He was very 

apologetic about his mistake. 

 

Having assessed the situation I am of the view that Steve Wagner has made a genuine 

mistake.  He prompted me to check telephone records when I had quizzed him about 

whether he had called Cllor Dhillion as he was convinced that he had simply answered the 

telephone that evening.  I am not sure if a person who had anything to conceal would 

have taken this action.  I am inclined to accept that what he said at his first interview is 

how he remembered the telephone call. 

       

KKC.       
 
 

Page 64



DOCUMENT 12 
 
From: Brown Martin 
Sent: 10 March 2011 14:39 
To: Channa Kuldip 
Subject: RE: re Private & confidential - message for Steve Wagner from Cllor Dhillon 

Dear Kuldip,  
 
I have looked through our manual file and flare today and could not find a message left for Steve 
Wagner. 
 
 

Kind Regards, 
 
Martin Brown 
 
  
 
Martin Brown 
 
Senior Administrator,  
 
Private Sector Housing 
 
Tel: 01753 474097 
 
Address: Private Sector Housing, Airways House, 2 Langley Road, Slough, SL3 
7FH. 
 
E mail: Martin.Brown@Slough.gov.uk 
 
Visit our website at www.slough.gov.uk 
 
P Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail 
 
Do not use email as a replacement to the phone or a face-to-face conversation.  
 
 

_____________________________________________ 

From: Channa Kuldip  

Sent: 10 March 2011 12:26 
To: Brown Martin 

Cc: Dhar Manju 

Subject: re Private & confidential - message for Steve Wagner from Cllor Dhillon 
Importance: High 
 
Dear Martin, 
Please can you look into your manual and electronic systems and see if you can establish 
whether a telephone message from Cllor Dhillon was left for Steve Wagner on 26 May 2010.  It 
may have concerned an applicant called Mr Satpal Grewal of 107 High Langley Slough SL3 8NG.  

Page 65



This is confidential and part of a Standards  Investigation and so please do not discuss it with 
anyone.  I have copied Manju into this email so that she knows I have asked you to undertake 
this task for me. Please do not discuss it with Steve as it needs to remain neutral information 
gathering for the purposes of my investigation.  If I can have a reply by Monday 14 March, that 
will be helpful.  If you do not find anything then please still send me an email to confirm that to 
me.     
 
I have to provide you with a formal warning - basically discuss the information with me and not 
anyone else without my permission. 
Warning: Please treat any information provided to you during the course of this investigation as 

confidential. In addition, there are statutory restrictions on the disclosure of information obtained 
during an investigation. This is covered by Section 63 of the Local Government Act 2000 and 
disclosure of information contrary to this is a criminal offence. 
 
Any questions please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Kind regards 

 

Kuldip 

 

Kuldip K Channa  

Litigation Solicitor 

For the Borough Secretary and Solicitor  

Slough Borough Council 

Town Hall, Bath Road, Slough SL1 3UQ 

DX: 42270 Slough (West) 

Mailto:kuldip.channa@slough.gov.uk  

Telephone: 01753 875189 

Fax: 01753 478642 

 

Document: 013250-COR-290/119417 
 

Page 66



APPENDIX B, DOCUMENT 1

Page 67



Page 68



APPENDIX B, DOCUMENT 2

Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B, DOCUMENT 3

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



From: B Dhillon [balwinderdhillon@hotmail.com]
Sent: 02 March 2011 12:54
To: Cook June
Subject: RE: Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee - 28th February 2011
Dear Ms June Cook

As I have spoken with you this morning about my witness Mr Satpal S Grewal to attend the above hearing and he is too distressed
and will not be able to come and attend and you can arrange your investigating officer to take astatement from him at his home
address in the presence of any independant witness or my solicitor
Mr Satpal S Grewal have made statements and according to him they should be enough or can ask question on the phone or you
can proceed without him  I hope you can decide and arrange the new date accordingly
Kind regards

Balwinder Dhillon

From: june.cook@slough.gov.uk
To: balwinderdhillon@hotmail.com
Date: Fri, 25 Feb 2011 15:38:44 +0000
Subject: Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee - 28th February 2011

Dear Councillor Dhillon

Please note that the meeting on Monday will be held in Committee Rooms 1 & 4 at the Town Hall and not the Mayor's Conference

Room as stated on the agenda.

Regards

June Cook

Member Services Manager

Slough Borough Council

Tel:  01753 875019

Fax: 01753 875171

www.slough.gov.uk
Please don't print this email unless you really need to - think of the environment

'Disclaimer: You should be aware that all e-mails received and sent by this Council are subject to the Freedom of Information Act
2000 and therefore may be disclosed to a third party. (The information contained in this message or any of its attachments may be
privileged and confidential and intended for the exclusive use of the addressee).  The views expressed may not be official policy but
the personal views of the originator.  If you are not the addressee any disclosure, reproduction, distribution, other dissemination or
use of this communication is strictly prohibited.  If you received this message in error please return it to the originator and confirm
that you have deleted all copies of it.  
All messages sent by this organisation are checked for viruses using the latest antivirus products.  This does not guarantee a virus
has not been transmitted.   Please therefore ensure that you take your own precautions for the detection and eradication of viruses.'

APPENDIX B, DOCUMENT 4

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C   

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Standards (Local Determination) Sub-Committee 
 

Local Hearing Procedure 
 

Interpretation: 
 
“Member” means the Member of the Council who is the subject 

of the allegation(s) being considered by the Sub-
Committee, unless stated otherwise.  It also includes 
the Member’s nominated representative (if any). 

 
“Investigator” means the Ethical Standards Officer (ESO) who 

referred the report to this Council or the Monitoring 
Officer and includes his or her nominated 
representative. 

 
1. Preliminaries 
 
1.1 The Chair will:- 
 

(a) ask the Members/Officers present to introduce themselves.  
 

(b) ask the Member Services Manager (or her representative) to 
confirm that the Sub-Committee is quorate. 
 

(c) ask the Investigator and the Member if they are to call any 
witnesses and if so who. 
 

(d) ask all present to confirm they know the procedure which the 
Sub-Committee will follow.  
 

(e) ask the Member, the Investigator and the Monitoring Officer (or 
his representative) whether there are any reasons to exclude the 
press and public from the meeting and if so on what grounds  
 

(f) advise the Sub-Committee that the determination process is in 
two stages:- 
 
(i) whether or not the Member has failed to comply with the 

Local Code of Conduct as set out in the Investigator’s 
report and 
 

(ii) if the Sub-Committee consider that a breach of the Local 
Code of Conduct has occurred what action (if any) the 
Sub-Committee should take. 
 

 

Page 83



 

P\stevenq\reports\158 

1.2 The Chair will explain how the Sub-Committee is going to run the 
hearing and remind everyone that the Sub-Committee have received 
and read all of the witness statements and supporting documentation 
which form part of the agenda papers.  Thus the Investigator and the 
Member should confine themselves to exploring any inconsistencies 
within the evidence and draw that to the attention of the Sub-
Committee. 
 

1.3 The Chair will emphasise that the proceedings are inquisitorial in 
nature not adversarial so cross-examination is not permitted. 
 

 
2. Making Findings of Fact/Has there been a Breach? – Stage 1 
 
2.1  The Monitoring Officer (or his representative) shall present the report 

submitted to the Sub-Committee together with the supporting 
documentation.  Confirmation will then be sought from the Member as 
to whether there are any other additional points i.e. new ones which are 
not contained in the documentation. 

 
2.2 The Investigator will present his case in the presence of the Member 

and may call witnesses to support the relevant findings of fact in the 
report. 
 

2.3 The Member, will have the opportunity to ask questions of any 
witnesses the Investigator may call. 
 

2.4 The Sub-Committee may ask questions of the Investigator and 
witnesses. 
 

2.5 The Member will present his case in the presence of the Investigator 
and call such witnesses as he wishes to support his version of the 
facts. 
 

2.6 The Investigator will have the opportunity to ask questions of the 
Member and his witnesses. 
 

2.7 The Sub-Committee may ask questions of the Member and his 
witnesses. 
 

2.8 The Chair shall then seek confirmation from the Members of the Sub-
Committee that sufficient information is now available to determine 
whether there has been a breach of the Code. 
 

2.9 At the discretion of the Chair the Investigator and the Member shall be 
given an opportunity to sum up their case (no more than five minutes 
each). 
 

Page 84



 

P\stevenq\reports\158 

2.10 The Sub-Committee may, at any time, question anyone involved on 
any point they raise in their representations. 
 

2.11 The Sub-Committee shall then in private identify the material findings of 
fact and decide whether the Member did fail to comply with the Local 
Code of Conduct (All parties to leave room except Member Services 
Manager (or her representative) who will minute).  The standard of 
proof is the balance of probabilities. 
 

2.12 Once the Members of the Sub-Committee have come to a decision 
then all parties shall return to hear the material findings of fact, whether 
the allegation has been proven and what recommendations they have 
for the Council to promote high standards of conduct.  Reasons will be 
given for the decision. 
 

2.13 If the Sub-Committee find that the case is not proven the meeting must 
ask the Member whether he wishes the Council not to publish a 
statement of its findings in a local newspaper.  Then the meeting is 
closed. 
 

2.14 If the case has been proven then the Sub-Committee will proceed to 
Stage 2. 

 
3. What Sanction should be Imposed? – Stage 2 
 
3.1 If the Sub-Committee decide that the Member has failed to follow the 

Local Code of Conduct, then it will consider:- 
 
 (i) whether or not the Sub-Committee should set a penalty; and 
 (ii) what form any penalty should take (see attached) 
 
3.2 The Sub-Committee may question the Investigator and Member and 

take legal advice if appropriate. 
 

3.3 The Sub-Committee will then retire to consider whether or not to 
impose a penalty on the Member, and if so, what the penalty should be. 
 

3.4 The Sub-Committee will return and the Chair will announce the Sub-
Committee’s decision and will provide a short written decision on the 
day. 
 

3.5 The Chair will inform the Member of his right of appeal to the First-Tier 
Tribunal. 

 
4. Post Hearing Procedure 
 
4.1 A full written decision will be issued within 14 days of the end of the 

hearing which will include full reasons for its decision. 
 

Page 85



 

P\stevenq\reports\158 

4.2 The Sub-Committee will arrange to publish a summary of its findings, 
the decision reached and where appropriate the penalty set in one or 
more newspapers (independent of the Council).   

 
 
Notes 
 
A. All Members of the Sub-Committee have the right to ask 

questions/seek clarification once the Investigator and the Member have 
presented their respective cases. 

 
B. The Complainant has no right to speak. 

 
 

Page 86



APPENDIX  D 
 

Admission of Press and Public to Standards (Local Determination) Sub-
Committee Hearings 
 
 
The Standards Board for England recommends that hearings should be held in public 
where possible to make sure that the hearing process is open and fair.  However, there may 
be some circumstances where parts of the hearing should be held in private.  
 
1 At the hearing, the Sub-Committee will consider whether or not the public should be 

excluded from any part of the hearing, in line with Part VA of the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as modified in relation to local determinations by Standards Committees).  
If the Sub-Committee considers that ‘confidential information’ is likely to be revealed 
during the hearing, the Sub-Committee must exclude the public by law.  ‘Confidential 
information’ is defined for these purposes to mean information that has been 
provided by a Government department under the condition that it must not be 
revealed, and information that the law or a court order says cannot be revealed.  

2 The Sub-Committee also has the discretion to exclude the public if it considers that 
‘exempt information’ is likely to be revealed during the hearing.  The categories of 
‘exempt information’ are set out in Document 4.  The Sub-Committee should act in 
line with Article 6 of the European Convention on Human Rights, which gives people 
the right to a fair trial and public hearing by an independent and unbiased tribunal.  
The Sub-Committee also has a duty to act fairly and in line with the rules of natural 
justice.  

3 Article 6 says that the public may be excluded from all or part of the hearing if it is in 
the interest of: 

(a) Morals; 

(b) public order; 

(c) justice; 

(d) natural security in a democratic society; or  

(e) protecting young people under 18 and the private lives of anyone involved.  

4 There should be a public hearing unless the Sub-Committee decides that there is a 
good reason, which falls within one of the five categories above (3a to e), for the 
public to be excluded.  

5 The Sub-Committee must also act in line with Article 10 of the European Convention 
on Human Rights, which sets out the right for people to ‘receive and impart 
information and ideas without interference by public authority’.  Any restrictions on 
this right must be ‘prescribed by law and…..necessary in a democratic society, in the 
interests of national security, territorial integrity or public safety, for the prevention of 
disorder or crime, for the protection of health or morals, for the protection of the 

Page 87



reputation or rights of others, for preventing the disclosure of information received in 
confidence, or for maintaining the authority and impartiality of the judiciary’. 

6 Conflicting rights often have to be balanced against each other.  The Sub-Committee 
must act in line with Article 8 of the European Convention on Human Rights. Article 8 
says that everyone has the right to respect for their private and family life, home and 
correspondence. It says that no public authority (such as the Sub-Committee) may 
interfere with this right unless it is:- 

(a) in line with the law; and  

(b) necessary in a democratic society in the interests of: 

(i) national security; 

(ii) public safety; 

(iii) the economic well-being of the country; 

(iv) preventing crime or disorder; 

(v) protecting people’s health and morals (which would include protecting 
standards of behaviour in public life); or  

(vi) protecting people’s rights and freedoms. 

There is a clear public interest in promoting the probity (integrity and honesty) of 
public authorities and public confidence in them.  For these reasons the hearing 
should be held in public unless the Sub-Committee decides that protecting the 
privacy of anyone involved is more important than the need for a public hearing.  

7 In relation to people’s rights under both Articles 8 and 10 of the European 
Convention on Human Rights, it should be remembered that any interference with or 
restriction of those rights must be ‘necessary’ if it meets ‘a pressing social need’, and 
any restriction on people’s rights must be ‘proportionate’. 

8 The Standards Board for England recommends that a Standards Committee/Sub-
Committee should move to a private room when considering its decisions. It is not 
considered that this will conflict with the rights under the European Convention on 
Human Rights or the duty to act fairly.  

  
 

Page 88



APPENDIX  E 
Categories of “Exempt Information”  
under Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972  
(as modified in relation to local determinations by Standards 
Committees) 

 
1.  Information relating to any individual 
 
2.  Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 

 
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that 
information) 

 
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 

contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with 
any labour relations matter arising between the authority or a 
Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders 
under, the authority. 

 
5.  Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 

privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 
6.  Information which reveals that the authority proposes— 
 

a. to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of 
which requirements are imposed on a person; or 

b. to make an order or direction under any enactment. 
 
7.  Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in 

connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of 
crime. 

 
7A Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality 
 
7B Information which relates in any way to matters concerning 

national security 
 
7C The deliberations of a standards committee or of a sub-

committee of a standards committee established under the 
provisions of Part 3 of the Local Government Act 2000 in 
reaching any finding on a matter referred under the provisions of 
section 60(2) or (3), 64(2). 70(4) or (5) or 71(2) of that Act. 

 
 
 

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX F   

SLOUGH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Standards (Local Determination) Sub-Committee 
 

The Local Authority (Code of Conduct) (Local Determination) 
(Amendment) 

 
Penalties 

 
Under these Regulations, Standards Committees/Sub-Committees can 
impose one, or any combination, of the following:- 
 

• censure the Member; 
 

• restrict the Member’s access to the premises and resources of the relevant 
authority for up to three months, ensuring that any restrictions are 
proportionate to the nature of the breach and do not unduly restrict the 
Member’s ability to perform his or her duties as a Member; 
 

• order the Member to submit a written apology in a form satisfactory to the 
Sub-Committee; 
 

• order the Member to participate in a conciliation process* specified by the 
Sub-Committee; 
 

• suspend, or partially suspend, the Member for up to three months; 
 

• suspend, or partially suspend the Member for up to three months, or until 
such time as the Member submits a written apology that is accepted by the 
Sub-Committee; 
 

• suspend, or partially suspend, the Member for up to three months, or until 
such time as the Member undertakes any training or conciliation ordered 
by the Sub-Committee. 

 
 
* Any conciliation process should have an agreed time frame for 

resolution.  The process may be of an informal or formal nature, 
involving elements of training and mediation that will lead to an 
effective and fair conclusion of the matter.  Any decisions reached 
during the process regarding future behaviour of the Member 
concerned, and measures to prevent a repetition of the 
circumstances that gave rise to the initial allegation, should be 
agreed by all parties. 

 

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous Meetings of the Sub-Committee held on 2nd  February 2011 and 7th March 2011
	Minutes , 07/03/2011 Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee

	3 Alleged Breach of Local code of Conduct - Councillor Balwinder Dhillon (SBC 2010/23)
	Investigating Officer's Final Report, 28/02/2011 Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee
	119763 - Supplementary Report Appendix A(2)
	Attachments to final Invest. report - Redacted, 28/02/2011 Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee
	116734 - Tele call to Cllor Dhillon returned  Document 9
	Email re outgoing telephone calls Document 10
	Calls made on 26 May 2010 Document 10
	Interview with Steve Wagner Document 11
	Email from Martin Brown Document 12
	Mr S Grewal's witness statement, 28/02/2011 Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee
	Letter from NCR Brother representing Cllr Dhillon dated 23 Feb with attachments, 28/02/2011 Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee
	Fax from Cllr Dhillon 28.02.11 Redacted
	Email -Cllr Dhillon 02.03.11
	Hearing Procedure Oct 2010 Appendix C, 28/02/2011 Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee
	Appendix D Admission of Press & Public, 28/02/2011 Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee
	Appendix E Categories of exmpt information, 28/02/2011 Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee
	Penalties.Sanctions Appendix F, 28/02/2011 Standards (Determination) Sub-Committee


